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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIFS

STRATEGIC REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Principal activities

Trident Holdco Limited (“the Company) was incorporated on 26 June 2019 and together with its subsidiaries forms
the Trident Holdco group of companies (“the Group™).

The Company was established in the United Kingdom to act as a holding company for the group of companies
carrying on the business of customised proprietary research. On 8 November 2019, one of the group entities, namely
Trident Bidco Limited, acquired 100% of the equity share capital of Trident Knowledge Services Jersey Limited and
MA Knowledge Services Research (India) Private Limited (now Acuity Knowledge Partners, “Acuity”) from
Moody’s Corporation, pursuant to a share purchase agreement.

Acuity is a leading provider of high-value research, analytics, automation technology and business intelligence to the
financial services sector, in domains such as investment banking, investment research, private equity, consulting, and
commercial lending, having grown during the period under review, to supporting over 500 financial institutions and
consulting companies through its specialist workforce of over 4,500 analysts and delivery experts across their global
delivery network. These services are provided by the Group primarily from offshore locations in India, China, Sri
Lanka and Costa Rica and the Group has subsidiaries in countries such as Mauritius, the USA, United Kingdom, and
Jersey to manage the business effectively.

Business review

The Group provides customised proprietary research support to its clients across Europe, the USA, Asia and Australia.
The Group's strengths include a strong focus on business development and client-focused service delivery. The Group
delivers its research and analytics services in a scalable and cost-efficient manner by leveraging its knowledge base.
During the year ended 31 December 2022, we were able to serve our clients by adopting a hybrid work-from-home
framework, and we continued to generate new business during this period. There were cancellations from some
clients, but we also won new business, both from existing clients and new clients. As a result, the Group was able to
steadily grow its revenue.

On 12 September 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Cians Analytics Private Limited along
with its subsidiaries (together referred as ‘Cians’) for a total consideration of $61,184 thousands. Cians is a provider
of high-quality, cost-effective research and analytical support for financial institutions. The acquisition of Cians is
expected to allow the Group to offer enhanced support in the field of knowledge process outsourcing (KPO) and help
streamline the operations of financial firms globally. Refer note 15 for further information.

Key performance indicators ("KPIs™)

The Group showed a good financial performance for the year ended 31 December 2022. Revenue from operations
for the year increased to $215,338 thousand (31 December 2021 - $160,785 thousand), largely driven by continued
organic growth of the business. The earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortisation (EBITDA) for the
year decreased to $301 thousand (31 December 2021 - $43,887 thousand), primarily due to an increase in the share-
based payment expenses and other operating expenses associated with the sale of the Group which is expected to
complete in Q2, 2023, As a result, the post-tax loss for the year increased to $47,768 thousand (31 December 2021 —
loss of $4,983 thousand).
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The following table provides the summary of EBITDA as well as the impact of costs recorded in relation to the sale
of the Group which is expected to complete in Q2, 2023:

(In $ 000°s)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Revenue 5 215,33 160,785

Staff costs 6 (171,366) (102,299)

Other operating expenses 8 {47,103) {16,457)

Other income 9 3,432 1,858

EBITDA 301 43,887

Add: Costs related to sale of the Group

Legal and professional charges (Other 18,882 -

operating expenses)

Share-based payment expenses (Staff costs) 6,32 50,196 3,971

Adjusted EBITDA 69,379 47,858

Cians contributed $5,591 thousands of revenue and $2,419 thousands to the consolidated EBITDA far the period
from 12 September 2022 to 31 December 2022.

The shareholders’ interest in the Group stood at deficit of $(74,600 thousand) as at the reporting date (31 December
2021 - $164,643 thousand).

Engagement with employees, suppliers, clients, and others

The directors of the Company believe engagement with stakeholders and acting in a way that promotes the long-term
success of the Group is central to their strategic thinking and statutory duty, in accordance with Section 172(1) of the
Companies Act 2006. While taking business decisions, they consider the impact on the Group’s stakeholders.

The directors of Trident Holdco Limited believe, both individually and collectively, that they have acted in good faith
and in a manner most likely to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of its members, having considered
stakeholders and matters set out in Section 172 (A-F of the Companies Act) in the decisions taken during the year.
Their plan is designed to have a long-term beneficial impact on the Group and its stakeholders, and to contribute
towards the Group’s continued success in delivering reduced carbon emissions and increased efficiency, safety and
sustainability for its clients. Their plan is focused on the Group's clients, as exemplified by the Group's client-focused
business strategy and employee focus. The directors intend to always behave responsibly and ethically, in line with
the Group’s values, and to ensure the management tearn operates the business in a responsible manner and to the
highest standards of business conduct and good governance.

The impact on, and engagement with, five key stakeholder groups are systematically considered to be part of the
strategy. These stakeholder groups are employees, clients, suppliers, communities, and the environment.

Employees

The directors consider employee engagement to be critical to the Group’s success, across its subsidiary entities
globally. The Group aims and undertakes to keep employees informed about matters of concern to them and the
performance of the Group and the subsidiaries they are employed in.

Communication with employees was particularly important during the period under review. This year saw the return
to offices of staff across the various locations after the two years of work from home due to the pandemic. A lot of
5
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communication relating to the Covid-19 protocols and safety measures in offices were a focus of the year. With more
normalising during the year, hybrid was the mode wherein we had some people in the office and the majority working
from home or remotely.

We use various communication tools to reinforce our values and their significance:

1. AHl about Acuity is our campaign to ensure all employees are aware and fully understand the Group values, the
CSR programs, the diversity programs, training opportunities, the benefits program and everything about the
organisation.

2. Deal Wins” communications are another way to recognise excellence, customer focus and teamwork. Every time
there is a deal win, we ensure that a communication is shared to mark the contribution of all those involved and how
our customer focus and excellence, helped us win the deal and withstand the strong competition.

3. Through regular communication from the CEO, CHRO (Chief Human Resources Officer) and Excom Desk
the management keeps all channels of communication open. Employees are encouraged to directly reach anyone in
the organisation. An open-door policy is practiced in principle and in action. There is regular communication on
important aspects of the organisation by the CEOQ, CHRO and other members of the Executive committee.

4, ACULIFE our employee newsletter provides a roundup of events and initiatives from across the world. It is a way
to showcase our culture and ethos of Work Hard, Play Hard, and Be Kind. A synopsis of all events is curated into a
wonderful read for the Acuity employees to enjoy the celebrations across the globe. There are updates on Fun@Worlk,
festival/cultural celebrations, diversity and inclusion initiatives, corporate social responsibility, volunteering
activities, wellness programs, training programs, reward and recognition and milestone achievers. The newsletter also
packs some creative articles and blogs by employees along with some fun quiz contests.

Besides all the above, the Group, has continued with its long-established, structured reward and recognition program
to motivate and give due recognition to its employees. Salary advances and accelerated bonuses were rolled out to
help employees take care of additional expenses.

Mental Health was a focus in this year with free telephonic counselling facility made available to all staff and - regular
programs on dealing with mental health issues.

The Directors consider the financial and operational results achieved within this reporting period are a testament to
the commitment of our employees and would like to thank them for their substantial ongoing efforts during this
challenging period.

Clients

The Group continued to strive to deliver improved excellence throughout 2022 to its clients with improved attrition.
Maost customers continue to be comfortable with a work from home service from our staff. Many positive testaments
have been received from our clients thanking our staff for their success in achievements in 2022, 2022 not only has
been a record new business year but also a record for new client take-on with over 120+ new logos added. The Group
took the opportunity to expand many of its existing relationships with many clients during this period as well as
acquire the Cians business to increase its market share in investment banking and data analytics.

2022 saw an increase in client meetings and face to face contact which was a welcome change for Acuity and our
clients to resume normality. The Group continues to strive to generate value for our stakeholders by helping them to
further improve their efficiency, safety and sustainability of their operations. The Group continues to meet the
immediate needs of our customers and develop and expanded suite of services, so that we can continue to meet our
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clients’ needs now as well as anticipating future needs. Our engagement model is such that it closely works with its
users to deliver superior quality, excellence, and value.

We regularly seek feedback from our clients, which enables us to understand what is going well and where clients
would like us to either improve on or areas, they would like us to develop further in. Technology continued to play
a substantial part of our discussions with clients in enabling our analytical services leveraging our Business
Excellence and Automation Tools (“BEAT™) platform and tools.

Suppliers

We continue to expect all our suppliers to operate ethically, ensure the safety and wellbeing of their staff and minimise
their environmental impact. Suppliers are selected considering their reputation in the industry, to minimise the
Group’s operational and reputational risk. We set high standards for our suppliers to ensure the Group’s long-term
success. Our employees are trained on business ethics and are encouraged to use whistleblowing mechanisms to raise
concerns about any inappropriate behaviour while working with our vendors. We pay our vendors for properly
completed work and it is the Group’s policy to make payments in line with the terms of the contracts, which typically
range between 30 and 60 days.

Communities

The Group takes pride in being socially responsible and supports communities through Corporate Social
Responsibility (“CSR”) interventiens focused on creating opportunities and access to sustainability. Our primary
focus areas are based on the three E’s: education, employability and environment. We are committed to improving
the conditions of the underprivileged, particularly children and women, using effective, innovative and sustainable
development solutions.

Education

s Providing digital education to nearly 5,000 students through high-quality smart classrooms and experiential
classes; we have rolled out comprehensive English literacy programmes for 500 students in rural areas.

* Provided training to over 220 teachers across projects on digital technology, English-language proficiency,
professional leadership and pedagogy.

e Rolled out a phonics programme to teach students the receptive skill of reading, benefiting 500 students.

Employability

» Facilitated the skill development of youth from underprivileged backgrounds as sewing machine operators
(SMOs); provided placement assistance to 35 SMOs.
s  Six teachers have been employed to train as peer trainers to support in-classroom coaching,

Environment

¢ The Sub-Surface Porous Vessel (SSPV) and G-filter were developed to introduce eco-friendly and cost-
effective water-purifying technology in Rajasthan. These innovations were conceptualised by researchers at
[T Jodhpur. G-filters have been installed in 15 schools, while 25 families have been provided access to clean
drinking water at a low cost via the SSPV technology.

¢ Planted over 3,000 saplings in a 20-acre plot of land to grow green cover and promote peri-urban forestry in
Bangalore.

¢ Involved 150 students in setting up three individual infrastructure gardens (two herb gardens and one kitchen
garden) in three schools in Delhi using recycled products. Planted over 100 saplings in these gardens.
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¢ Associated with 10 schools to promote environmental awareness, involving more than 300 school children,
through workshops on sustainability, exposure visits to ecological hotspots and action-oriented projects for
practical learning.

Innovation is much more than new product development and R&D. Innovation leads to multiple benefits at multiple
levels of the organisation. Traditionally, many organisations have adopted a top-down approach to innovation and
by doing, so have failed to recognise the potential for new ideas hidden in their existing workforce. On the other
hand, “Illuminate” is a programme that allows Acuity to implement and institutionalise a framework for harnessing
the collective thought power of its 4,000+ staff to hind new value propositions for the business.

INluminate provides an innovation ecosystem, culture and idea pipeline for the Group. It defines processes and
tools for collection, review and management of new ideas for existing business/operations, supportive
business/operations and new business/operations.

This idea-generation programme is an entrepreneurial initiative that enables employees not just to present ideas, but
also to build on them and see them through to execution. Winning ideas are provided with management sponsorship
and resources for development.

The programme is hosted on an internally developed interactive tech platform.
Environment

Climate change is a global challenge and an emerging risk to businesses, the population and the environment. We
have a role to play in limiting global warming by improving our energy management, reducing our carbon emissions
and helping our clients to do so.

How we are engaging:
- we actively engage with clients to identify and implement engineered solutions to reduce their energy use,
carbon emissions, water use and waste
- we educate our employees and take steps to reduce our environmental impact
- we provide informative industry insights through our blogs and newsleiters on this subject
- we report transparently on our environmental performance

The Group tracks the energy consumption across all locations where it has leased offices, i.c., India, China, Costa
Rica and Sri Lanka. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s aggregate electricity consumption was
2,821,541 KWH (31 December 2021 - 1,807,736 KWH) converting to 2,542 tonnes (31 December 2021 - 1,585
tonnes) of carbon emissions. This does not include the de-minimis activities in our shared office spaces. The Group
has undertaken several measures to reduce the carbon emissions like switching to LED lights, installing motion
sensors in offices to turn off lights in unoccupied areas, etc. The electricity consumption was 581 KWH (31 December
2021 - 492 KWH) and 0.52223 tonnes (31 December 2021 - 0.43095 tonnes) of CO? per employee for the year ended
31 December 2022,

Significant events during the year
Acquisition of Cians

On the 12 September 2022, the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Cians, a provider of high-quality,
cost-effective research and analytical support for financial institutions, for a total consideration of $61,184 thousands.
For more details refer note 15 of the financial statements.
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Refinancing long-term borrowings and redemption of preference shares

During the year, the Group entered into a *Senior Facilities’ agreement on 30 May 2022 and borrowed a sum of
$315,000 thousand from a consertium of banks. The loan is repayable in full within 84 months from the date of first
utilisation. The loan proceeds have been utilised as follows:

¢ Repayment of existing term loan of $105,875 thousands in its entirety (along with $3,020 thousands interest
accrued) as per Note 22.

¢ Redemption of $151,391 thousands outl ol $159,000 thousands of preference share capital (along with
$46,453 thousands dividend accrued) as per Note 20.

Application of hedge accounting - Interest rate cap

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates. The
risk is managed by the Group using interest rate option contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align
with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are
applied. During the year the Group entered into Interest rate Cap agreement (IRC) with HSBC Bank PLC as the
floating rate payer. The [RC has a maturity date of 8 June 2024 with a notional amount of $267,225 thousand and
strike rate of 3%. Refer note 3.7 of the consolidated financial statements for further information.

Sri Lanka’s economic crisis

The Group operates through its subsidiary in Sri Lanka. Management has evaluated the operational and financial
impact of the economic crisis in Sri Lanka and does not foresee any material impact on the Group’s financial
statements. However, the Group will continue to monitor the situation and its impact on its financial statements.

Russia’s invasion of Ukraine

The Group is closely monitoring the impact of the ongoing Russia/Ukraine conflict on all aspects of its business. The
war in Ukraine has led, and continues to lead, to significant casualties, damage to infrastructure and disruption to
economic activity in Ukraine. In response, several countries have imposed, and continue to impose, new sanctions
an specified Russian entities and individuals. Sanctions have also been imposed on Belarus, The situation has also
led to fluctuations in commodity prices, foreign-exchange rates, restrictions on imports and exports, and reduced
aceess to local resources, Since the Group does not have any operations in or exposure to Russia, Belarus or Ukraine,
management concluded that the ongoing war does not have any significant impact on the Group.

Events after the balance sheet date

On 27 January 2023, the Group’s ultimate controlling party, Equistone Partners Europe Limited (Equistone),
announced that it has agreed to sell its investment in the Group with othet shareholders to Permira Advisors LLP
(Permira). Permira is a global investment firm based in London, United Kingdom. The sale of the Group is subject
to regulatory approvals and is expected to close in the second quarter of 2023, Equistone will reinvest in the Group
as a minority shareholder.

Future outlaok

The directors remain confident that the Group will maintain a good level of performance in the future.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Principal risks and uncertainties relating to the Group’s business are as follows:

The Group's business model is based around securing long-term, high-value contracts. These are delivered by the
Group with sufficient managerial strength, The Group also needs to ensure that sufficient new contracts are won, and
existing contracts extended or renewed to meet its long-term growth targets. More robust processes for business
development and managing client relationships have led to sustained business growth.

Given uncertainties in the financial markets, the Group is exposed to credit risk that it constantly reviews and
mitigates by carrying out major {ransactions only with creditworthy counterparties and after obtaining sufficient
collateral where appropriate.

Changes in tax rates or tax rules could affect future results.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk relates primarily to operating activities (when revenue or expenses are
denominated in foreign currency) and the Group’s net investment in foreign subsidiaries. The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by using non-deliverable forward contracts. Refer to note 28 of consolidated financial
statements for further information.

Creditor payment policy

The Group's policy is to settle payments with suppliers in accordance with the agreed terms of each transaction and
to ensure that suppliers are made aware of and will abide by the terms of payment.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to financial risks including credit risk. The use of financial derivatives is governed
by the Group’s policies approved by the board of directors, which provides written principles on the use of financial
derivatives to manage these risks. The Group does not use derivative instruments for speculative purposes. A detailed
assessment of these risks has been discussed and enurmerated in note 28 of the consolidated financial statements.

Cashflow risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign-currency exchange rates and
interest rates. The Group’s treasury team monitors the conditions for fluctuations based on materiality and takes
appropriate steps as needed. The Group pays careful attention to the management of its cashflow and working capital
position. Controls are in place to ensure that appropriate payment terms are included in contracts with clients and
suppliers. Adequate cash is maintained, and appropriate working capital management procedures are in place to
ensure the Group operates within those cash limits.

Credit risk

Given the uncertainties in the financial markets, the Group is exposed to credit risk, which it constantly reviews and
mitigates by carrying out major transactions only with creditworthy counterparties and after obtaining sufficient
collateral where appropriate.

10
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Liguidity risk

The Group pays careful attention to the management of its cashflow and working capital position. Controls are in
place to ensure that appropriate payment terms are included in contracts with clients and suppliers. Adequate cash is
maintained, and appropriate working capital management procedures are in place to ensure the Group operates within
those cash limits. It maintains liquidity so that sufficient funds are available for ongoing operations and future
developments.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the Group borrow funds at floating interest rates. The
risk is managed by the Group using interest-rate option contracts. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align
with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied.

Cybersecurity risk

The integrity and security of our systems are key to effective operation of the business. As the Group regularly
collects, processes and stores personal data through its business operations {including names, addresses, email
addresses, phane numbers and financial data such as bank details), it must ensure strict compliance with all relevant
data protection- and privacy-related laws and regulations in all jurisdictions in which it operates. The Group is
potentially exposed to the risk that client or employee personal data could be inapprapriately collected, lost or
disclosed, or processed in breach of data protection regulations. This could also result in formal investigations and/or
possible litigation, resulting in prosecution and damage to our brand and reputation,

The Group has appropriate data protection policies in place to protect the privacy rights of individuals in accordance
with relevant data protection legislation. The Group’s [nformation Security, Legal and Compliance teams ensure the
business adheres to industry best practices and relevant laws of data protection. The Group has made significant
investments in IT security resources and partners with a variety of external security specialists to ensure security
arrangements and systems are up to date with emerging threats. IT security is embedded in IT operations and
development processes. The Group’s Information and Security function continues to assess the risks and controls
around security and IT operations and takes necessaty actions to minimise potential threats and risks that arise.

Employee issues

The Group recruits, hires and employs individuals based on job-related qualifications and abilities. The Group has a
longstanding policy of providing a work environment that is free from unlawful discrimination on any grounds,
including physical or mental disability. If existing employees become disabled, every effort is made to find them
appropriate work, and training is provided if necessary.

There are continuous discussions with employees at all levels, with the aim of ensuring their views are considered
when decisions are made on matters likely to affect their interests. Each year, the Group administers a Business
Effectiveness Survey to better understand employees’ views on several key areas, including management, resources
and development. Feedback received forms the basis for action across the Group.

Employees are made aware of the financials and economics of the Group through presentations, briefings and the
distribution of the Group’s annual financial statements.
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Diversity and inclusion (D&1)

We are an equal-opportunity employer, and we are committed to maintaining a workplace that welcomes, respects
and embraces everyone with an open heart and mind. Diversity is at the core of our business. We are fully committed
to being an inclusive workforce and an equal-opportunity employer with ermployees representing different
backgrounds, cultures, genders and viewpoints.

Our D&I mission statement clearly states that, “dcuity Knowledge Partners is commitied to being an inclusive
emplover that supports diversity in all forms. We respect each other and support our employees {o be their authentic
selves. Supporting and promoting diversity and inclusion are central to our mission to build a great company to work

Jor.”

Our D& strategy has three focus areas:

o Understanding diversity and inclusion
* (reating a great employee experience
« Measuring the progress of our D&I efforts, including the retention and development of talent

The D&I Office owns the Company’s D&I agenda and is responsible for driving it in close cooperation with the
business. An ExCom member and the Chief Human Resources Officer lead the D&I Office, providing the required
thought leadership and outlining the way forward.

The Diversity Council acts as a steering committee for all the organisation’s D&I initiatives. Chaired by the Chief
Product Officer and an ExCom member, the council collaborates with the D&I Office to coordinate and manage the
D&I process. The council comprises a group of employees who represent a cross-section of the organisation’s senior
leaders and executives.

Open to all employees, Acuity’s Diversity Networks (DNs) are voluntary employee groups that promote an effective
and inclusive work environment. These networks aim to build a more compassionate and responsive workplace, break
down barriers and make a difference. We have five DNs:

1. Women Initiatives Network (WIN): Seeks to enhance the recruitment, retention, advancement and professional
development of female professionals by implementing programmes that foster greater interaction among peers as
well as the broader community, while acting as a collective voice for raising women’s issues to senior management
and enhancing the employee value proposition.

2

Multicultural Affinity and Growth Network (MAGNET): Secks to catalyse the advancement of ethnically
diverse employees and to promote cultural awareness within the Group globally.

Parents Encouraging Parents Network (PEP): Seeks to bring together working parents and parents-to-be to
augment a conducive environment for nurturing and improving “working-parent skills”, sharing intelligence and
experiences, and providing a discussion platform on common challenges in parenting, childcare and family life.

(O8]

4. Intergenerational Diversity Network (BRIDGE): Aims to foster understanding among generations and promote
intergenerational dialogue and learning, while challenging generational stereotypes and beliefs.

5. LGBTQ+ Ally Network (PRISM): Aims to create awareness and understanding about the LGBTQ+ space and
make the Group a workplace of choice for the community.

12
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Rewards and recognition (R&R)

Employees are rewarded for exemplifying corporate values. The Group is committed to recognising valuable
contributions made by staff towards achieving the organisation’s goals and values. The R&R programme aims to
accomplish this objective and make Acuity a great place to work.

Quarterly awards

+ Our quarterly award categories are Rising Star, Most Valuable Player (MVP), Lead and Extra Miler . Excellence
and client focus are at the heart of each of the awards. For Extra Miler, we acknowledge and recognise the efforts
of individuals who have gone beyond the scope of their role and engage in activity such as mentoring, training
new recruits and contributing to the diversity initiatives of the organisation/team.

« Innovation is an important aspect of our culture, and we recognise employees for their contributions with the Ace
Innovator Award.

e Toreward and appreciate high-performing teams, we present the Most Valuable Team award.
Annual awards

The annual global awards are very correctly called the *Pride of Acuity” awards. Consistent performance and
significant contribution throughout the year to Acuity’s growth, vision and values are important considerations for
nomination for this award.

Long-service awards

We recognise the contributions of all employees on their work anniversaries through communication within the team,
thanking the employee for their services. Employees completing milestones such as the 5", 10®, 15" and 20" work
anniversary receive a cash reward for their continued association. We also take this opportunity to connect with their
families and send a note of gratitude for their support.

Rewards and recognition town hall meetings are an important part of our culture. Our business is a people business,
and we like to ensure achievements and accomplishments do not go unnoticed. Apart from the prize money, email
announcements, certificates and trophies, we ensure town hall meetings are organised for public announcements.

Peer-to-peer recognition: These awards unify the more-than-5,500 Acuity employees across our eleven global
offices and seven lines of business. It is Acuity’s blueprint for cultural engagement of successful employees. Each
day, we deliver world-class products and solutions as we live the Acuity values: excellence, having an open mindset,
focusing on our clients and collaborating with others. The awards recognise the contributions of outstanding Acuity
employees whose behaviour and success best reflect these values.

The Group inspires its employees to feel their work has more meaning than a job by encouraging them to live by
these corporate values, rewarding positive behaviour and giving them a chance to grow, learn something new and
innovate. The Group believes in equity, fairness and meritocracy. The Group presents opportunities to bring our best
original selves to work without prejudice and discrimination.
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Health and safety

The Group aims to ensure a safe and healthy working environment for all our employees, external contractors and
visitors. The Group aims to comply with all relevant local legislation and regulations, and best practice guidelines
recommended by national health and safety authorities.

By ordcr of the Board of Directors

LemT

/g ";;"l. . ’;,"
e
Robert David King
Director

Date 31 March 2023
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2022

The Board of Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Group and the Company, together with the
financial statements and auditor’s report, for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Directors
The Directors who served during the period and to the date of this report were:

Philip Allan Gore-Randall
Timothy Allan Swales
Robert David King
Richard Charles Briault

Going concern

The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of 21 months from the date of approval of these financial
statements which indicate that the Group will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities as they fall due in that period.

In making their assessment, the Directors have also considered the guarantees given in respect of the Group loans,
the fixed and floating charges over the Group's assets and the cash flow of the Group.

The Group is forecasting to maintain the current growth momentum and generate positive cash inflows after servicing
the net debt of the Group.

The Directors are therefore confident that the Group will have sutficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities as
they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements. Also, the change in control
from Equistone to Petiira is not expected to impact the Group’s ability to prepare its financial statements on a going
concern basis.

Further details are included in the basis of preparation of Group's financial statements as mentioned in Note 2.
Directors’ indemnities

The Group has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors and these remain in
force at the date of this report.

Results and dividends

The Group made a total comprehensive loss for the year of $53,771 thousand (31 December 2021 - loss of $5,601
thousand) attributable to ordinary shareholders. The increased loss is mainly driven by the expenses relating to the
prospective acquisition of the Group by Permira (refer note 10 of the consolidated financial statements) and increased
finance costs due to increase in borrowings.

The Group recognised an expense for preference dividend of $10,434 thousand (31 December 2021 - $17,748
thousand) during the year, in accordance with the terms of the shareholders agreement.

Political and charitable contributions

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries made any political donations or incurred any political expenditure
during the year. The Group made charitable donations during the year amounting to $266 thousand (31 December
2021 - $247 thousand).



TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2022

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the
Directors have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards (UK-IAS) in line with the Companies Act 2006 and the Parent company financial statements
in accordance with UK-1AS including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”. Under Company Law, the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period.

In preparing the Parent company financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors

- properly select and apply accounting policies;

- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to
enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s
financial position and financial performance; and

- make an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

Statement of disclosure of information to the auditor
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

- so far as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group's auditor is unaware;
and the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director to make himself/herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006.



TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Appomtment of auditor

Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, there will be a resolution to appoint auditors for the Group at the
Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors

-7

o
Robert David King
Director

Date 31 March 2023
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Trident Holdco Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion:

e the financial statements of Trident Holdco Limited (the *parent company”) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) give
a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and
of the Group’s loss for the year then ended,;

¢ the Greup financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted
international accounting standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB);

s the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006; and

¢ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requitements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated income statement and other comprehensive income;
the consolidated statement of financial position;

the consolidated statement of cash flows;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity;

the notes to the consolidated financial statements;

the Company statement of income and other comprehensive income;
the Company statement of financial position;

the Company statement of changes in equity; and

the notes to the standalone financial statements.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
adopted international accounting standards and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the *FRC’s") Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion,
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Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors” use of the going concern basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors” assessment of the Group’s and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting included an assessment of:

» the design and implementation of controls surrounding the financing facilities including nature of facilities,
repayment terms and covenants;

s cash flow forecasts for a period beyond the twelve months period required under ISA 570;
s underlying assumptions used in the cash flow forecasts;

s sensitised scenarios used by management to assess the susceptibility of cash flow forecasts to external and
internal factors; and

» the sophistication of the model used to prepare the forecasts, including its clerical accuracy.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditicns that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and parent company’s ability
to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report, Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
[SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise firom fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report,

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the Group’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the Group’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also
enquired of management and the directors about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities,
including those that are specific to the Group’s business sector.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the Group operates in, and identified the
key laws and regulations that:

¢ had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These
included the prevailing tax laws and regulations across its territories and the UK Companies Act; and

+ do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the
Group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team (including relevant internal specialists such as tax, valuations, and
IT specialists) regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how
and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

There is a risk of the potential impairment of the Group’s significant intangible assets. To address this risk, we
performed the following procedures:

*  We obtained management’s impairment assessment and evaluated the appropriateness of management’s
identification of the Group’s CGUs and ascertained their carrying amounts;

e Management has instructed an external valuation specilaist to determine a Value in Use (*VIU’) valuation
based upon the Group’s forecast performance. We have obtained this valuation report and assessed the
external specialist’s competency and independence;
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¢ The sale of the Group from Equistone to Permira has provided a data point to determine a Fair Value Less
Cost to Sale (‘FVLCTS’). We have vouched the FVLCTS wvaluation and assumptions to suppotting
documentation, including the Share Purchase Agreement ("SPA’);

e We have compared the determined VIU and FVLCTS valuations to confirm that there is no impairment
requirement; and

¢ We have assessed whether the Group’s disclosures are appropriate.

In commen with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the
risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

e reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with
provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

» performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
of material misstatement due to fraud;

s enquiring of management, and legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

¢ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o the information given in the strategic repott and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepated is consistent with the financial statements; and
e the strategic report and the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and of the parent company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the
directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Campanies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

s adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

¢ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing 1o report in respect of these matters.
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Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are reqguired Lo state to them in an auditor’s repott and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

ok Porall

Mark Boxall (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Bristol, UK

31 March 2023
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Consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)
For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Revenue 5 215,338 160,785
Staff costs 6 {(171,366) {102,299)
Depreciation and amortisation 7 (16,309) {15,520)
Other operating expenses 2 (47,103) {16,457)
Other income 9 3,432 1,858
Operating (loss)/profit 10 (16,008) 28,367
Finance income 11 1,159 896
Finance costs 11 (31,302) (26,166)
Impairment losses on short term investments - (81)
(L.oss)/profit before tax (46,151) 3,016
Tax expense 12 (1,617) (7,999)
Lass for the year {47,768) (4,983)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 24 (190) (288)
Income tax related to defined benefit liability 12 49 92
(141) (196)
Ttems that are or may he reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Currency translation differences on foreign operations (5,782) (978)
{Loss)/gain on forex derivatives {3,529) 686
(Gain on interest rate cap 3,486 -
Incqme tax related to (loss)/gain on forex derivatives 12 (37) (130)
and interest rate cap
(5,862) (422)
g:‘her comprehensive expense for the year, net of (6,003) (618)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (33,771 (5,601)




TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)
As at As at
Note 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 13 4,108 4,286
Goodwill 15 143,478 108,310
Other intangible assets 14 141,197 123,205
Right-of-use assets 23 5,925 6,651
Capital work-in-progress 891 137
Derivative financial instruments 16 775 -
Trade and other receivables 17 2,262 2,217
Long-term Investment 19 67 -
Non-current tax assets 2,092 3,170
Deferred tax assets 12 7,624 5,653
308,419 253,629
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 17 47,335 31,229
Derivative financial instruments 16 2,404 1,309
Short term investments 19 - -
Cash and bank balances 18 34,272 67,566
84,011 100,104
Total assets 392,430 353,733
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 22 307,025 100,810
Lease liabilities 23 3,909 3,998
Employee benefits 24 10,357 14,147
Provisions 26 71 85
Deferred tax liabilities 12 35,473 31,178
356,835 15G,218
Current liabilities
Loans and borrowings 22 - 2,750
Current tax liabilities 1,483 6,313
Lease liabilities 23 2,281 3.124
Employee benefits 24 71,403 14,556
Trade and other payables 25 32,185 11,688
Derivative financial instruments 16 2,843 441
110,195 38,872
Total liabilities excluding preference share capital 467,030 189,090




TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2022

(In § 000°s)
As at As at
Note 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Shareholders® interest
Liabilities
Preference share capital 20 7,560 158,951
Accrued dividends 207 36,226
7,767 195,177
Equity
Share capital 20 10 10
Share premium 990 981
Own shares (90} {1,170)
Other reserves (6,383) (521)
Retained earnings (76,894) (29.834)
Total Equity (82,367) (30,534)
Total shareholders’ interest (74,600) 164,643
Total liabilities 474,797 384,267
Total equity and liabilities 392,430 353,733

Notes on pages 29 to 78 form part of these financial statements

On and behalf of the Board of Directors
of Trident Holdco Limited

-
e
/%’ ,—‘.*\_...,—‘;_
e

o

Robert David King
Director

Date 31 March 2023
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(In § 000's)

For the year ended
31 December 2022

For the year ended
31 December 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before tax

Adjustments for:

— Amortisation of right of use assets

— Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
— Amortisation of intangible assets

— Unrealised foreign exchange loss

— Impairment loss/(reversal) on trade receivables
— Impairment loss on short-term investments

— Unrealised (gain) on derivative assets

— Unwinding of discount on Habilities

— Interest on term loan

— Dividends on redeemable preference shares

— Amortisation of interest rate cap

— Interest rate cap processing fee

— Fair value gain on long-term investments

— Gain on interest rate swap

— Interest on lease

— Finance income

Changes in:

— Trade and other receivables

— Trade and other payables

— Derivative instruments

— Accrued employee costs

- Provisions

Cash generated from operating activities
Income taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received

Proceeds from maturity of term deposits (net)
Acquisition of Cians

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

(46,151) 3,016
2,825 3,048
2,250 1,920

11,234 10,552
819 15

25 (10)

- 81

- (623)

76 -
19,024 7,811
10,434 17,748
1,250 -
349 -

@), -
(3,147) (45)
518 607
(1,159) (896)
(1,660) 43,224
(12.816) (6,711)
11,814 (1,576)
4,136 -
55,349 8,385
(D (43)
56,822 43,279
(10,257) (7,839)
46,565 35,440
944 659

821 516
(61,184) -
(5,179) (3,432)
(64,598) (2,257
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Consolidated statement of cash MNows
For the year ended 31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)

For the year ended
31 December 2022

For the year ended
31 December 2021

Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of own shares

Payment for redemption of preference shares
Payment of dividend on preference shares
Proceeds from senior facility term loan
Repayment of senior facility term loan
Payment of loan processing fee

Proceeds from revolving credit facility
Repayment from revolving credit facility
Payment of lease liabilities

Payment of interest on lease liabilities
Payment of interest rate swap liability
Payment of interest rate cap premium
Proceeds on settlement of interest rate swap

Payment of interest on term loan

Net cash used in financing activities

Net Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ot the year

Cash and cash equivalents acquired through
business combination (refer note 15)

Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

- (1,164)
{151,391) -
(46,453) (10)
315,000 -
(105,875) (2,750)
(8,517) -
10,000 -
(10,000) -
(3,298) (3,046)
(518) (607)

- (554)

(1,200) -
2,706 -
(14,547) (7.211)
(14,093) (15,342)
(32,126) 17,841
66,724 49,838
4,962 -
(5,309) (955)
34,251 66,724
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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. General Information

The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of Trident Holdco Limited ("the Company") and
its subsidiaries {collectively, referred as “the Group”). The Company is incorporated in the United Kingdom and
registered in England and Wales. The Group is primarily involved in providing investment research and analytics
support services on an outsourced basis to the stock broking arms of investment banks (“the sell side™) and the
research departments of institutional money and hedge funds (the “buy side™).

The Company is owned by funds managed by Equistone. They acquired the knowledge services business, renamed
as Acuity Knowledge Partners from Moody's Corporation during the period ended 31 December 2020.

2. Basis of preparation
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Group, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive income {OCI), consolidated statement of changes in
equity, consolidated statement of cash flows and notes thereto, have been prepared in accordance with the UK-
adopted International Accounting Standards (UK-TAS) and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as
applicable to companies reporting under those standards.

The financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue by the board of directors in accordance with a
resolution of Directors dated 31 March 2023.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the going concern and historical cost basis except for purchase
accounting, interest rate swap and share based payments, which have been valued at fair value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

These Consolidated financial statements are presented in USD ($), which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates and are rounded to the nearest thousand USD (5).

2.4 Going Concern

The Group has reported a loss before tax for the year of $46,151 thousand (31 December 2021 - profit §3,016
thousand) and has net current liabilities as at the reporting date of $26,184 thousand (31 December 2021 - net current
assets $61,232 thousand). The Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of 21 months from the date
of approval of these financial statements which indicate that the Group will have sufficient funds, to meet its liabilities
as they fall due. Therefore, the directors are satisfied at the time of approving the financial statements that the Group
has adequate resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

Future projections of the business have been prepared based on reasanable forecasts related to new sales, renewals
and client attrition. The Group has estimated two business forecast scenarios i.e., base case scenario and downside
scenario. For each business forecast scenario, income statement performance and cash flows have been prepared. For
each scenario, the directors have prepared two cash collection scenarios, i.e., Business as Usual (BAU) Cash
Collection Scenario and Stressed Cash Collection Scenario. The BAU scenario is considered by the directors to be
the most likely scenario for the Group however, in all the scenarios, the Group has been assessed to be a going
concern.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The change in control from Equistone to Permira is not expected to impact the Group’s ability to prepare its financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the Group will have sufficient funds to continue to meet its liabilities
as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements and therefore these
financial statements have been prepared using the going concern basis of accounting.

2.5 New accounting standards issued but noft yel effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Group’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards
and interpretations, if applicable, when they become effective.

- Amendments to [AS 1: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

- Amendments to [AS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

- Amendments to [AS 12: Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
- Amendments to [AS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

- IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

The above amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated or standalone financial
statements of the Company.

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out belew have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented
in these financial statements.

3.1 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Compaiy and entities controlled by
the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December 2022. Control is achieved when the Company:

* has power over the investee,
* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
» has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee
are sufficient to give it power, including:

« the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders.

* potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties.
- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

+ any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies
used into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the
members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Profit or loss and each component of OClI is attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

A change in ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control aver a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-
controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

a) Business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Group.
The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets
acquired. Any goodwill that arises {s tested annually for impairment. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred,
except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

b) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group “controls’ an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

¢) Employee benefit trusts

The employee benefit trusts are structured entities controlled by the Company. The control is achieved when the
Company:

- has power over the trustees;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with a Trust;
- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

3.2 Property, Plant and Equipment

a) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumnulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of PPE includes freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses related to the
acquisition of those fixed assets and borrowing cost if the recognition criteria are met.

If signiticant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment,

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after use is included in the cost of the
respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.
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b) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

¢) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current year are as follows:

Class of assets Useful life

Office equipment 5 years

Computers (IT equipment and networking equipment) 5 years

Computers (comprising end-user devices, such as laptops, desktops, etc.) 3 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or useful life

of the leasehold improvements

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least annually and adjusted if appropriate.
d) Derecognition

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is derecognised:

« upon disposal of assets; or

« when no future economic benefits are expected from its use.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. The gain or less on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss and classified as other non-operating income/ (expenses), net.

3.3 Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Other Intangible assets

a) Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination (such as customer relationships, BEAT software, Trade name) is their fair value at the date
of acquisition.

b} Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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¢) Amortisation

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life using straight-line method.

The management has assessed estimated useful lives as follows:

Class of assets Useful life
Customer relationships 10 to 15 years
Business Excellence and Automation Tools 3 to 10 years
Trade Name 2 years
Non-compete agreement 4 years

Software that is an integral part of the Company’s computer systems and is expected to provide enduring benefits is
capitalised and amortised on a straight-line method over a period of 5 years. This also represents the management’s
estimated economic useful life of computer software,

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite usetul life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finite lives is recognised in the statement of income.

[ntangibie assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, cither
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the statement of income.

3.4 Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it
relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured as the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. Corporate income tax payable on taxable profits is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the profits arise. Current tax is measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax expense relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in the
statement of comprehensive income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.
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b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the statement of financial position method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrving amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
axation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the following temporary differences:

-the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that aftects neither
the accounting nor taxable profit or foss,

-differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

-In addition, deferred tax is not recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are only offset when there is both a legal right to set-off and an intention to settle on a net basis.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become
prabable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. The Group offsets deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

3.5 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial
period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

3.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks with an original maturity of 90
days or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

3.7 Financial Instruments

The Group recognises financial instruments when it becomes a party to the contract that gives rise to a financial asset
of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument ot another entity.
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Financial assets

All financial assets are measured initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not measured at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

The Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flows characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Examples of such financial assets include
intercompany loans, trade receivables and contract assets.

Financial assets af fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymenis of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets other than those measured at amortised cost or other comprehensive income category are
subsequently measured at fair valued through profit or loss. Examples of such financial asset are derivatives.

Subsequent measurement
Financial assels af amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified and
impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses
or reversals are recognised in the statement of income and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the
cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets af fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the staterment of financial position at fair value with
net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of income.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange forward contracts and interest rate caps.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently revalued to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event
the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whercas a derivative with a negative fair value
is recognised as a financial liability. Derivatives are not offset in the financial statements unless the Group has both
a legally enforceable right and intention to offset. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current
liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or settled
within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk in cash flow hedges. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments and interest rate cap are accounted
for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and
the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationships meets all the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

¢ There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument

e The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship

e  The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item
that the Group hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that
quantity of the hedged item

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk
management objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts (rebalances) the
hedge ratio of the hedging relationship so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

The Group designates the full change in the fair value of a forward contract (including the forward elements) as the
hedging instrument for all its hedging relationships involving forward contracts.

The Group designates only the intrinsic value of option contracts as a hedged item, i.e., excluding the time value of
the option. The changes in the fair value of the aligned time value of the option are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve. 1f the hedged item is transaction-related, the time value is
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss. If the hedged item is time period related, then
the amount accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve is reclassitied to profit or loss on a rational basis — the Group
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applies straight-line amortisation. Those reclassified amounts are recognised in profit or loss in the same line as the
hedged item.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portions of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedging instruments that are
designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of cash flow hedging reserve, limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from
inception of the hedge. The gain ar loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or lass.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit
or loss in the same line as the recognised hedged item in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

However, when the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
removed from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial
liability. This transfer does not affect other comprehensive income. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some ot
all the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount is
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof} ceases to meet the
qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, or exercised. The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in cash flow hedge reserve at that time remains in equity and is
reclassified to profit or loss when the forecast transaction occurs, When a forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified immediately to profit or loss.

3.8 Impairment
a) Non-financigl asset

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's
recoverable amount,

An asset’s recaverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit’s {"CGU") fair value less costs to
sell and its value-in-use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining falr value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are considered, if available, I no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded entities or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on most recent budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. A long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year.
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Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of income in expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset, except for properties previously revalued with the revaluation taken to OCIL.
For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

In respect of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of income
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually as at 31 December and when circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at 31 December at the CGU level,
as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

b) Financial asset

The Group uses the expected credit losses (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
financial assets that are trade receivables or contract revenue receivables and all lease receivables. The Group has no
financing component for such financial assets and therefore applies a simplified approach to assess ECL.

Under the simplified approach, the Group recognises a loss allowance for estimated ECL based on historical
experience adjusted for current and forward-locking factors specitic to the debtors and the economic environment
and current conditions that will always equal a lifetime of expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are
those that result from all passible default events over the expected life of trade receivables. Estimates of uncollectible
accounts are recorded as an impairment loss and are reflected as additions to the accounts receivable allowance.

The Group evaluates its accounts receivable allowance by reviewing and assessing historical collection and the
current aging status of customer accounts. The Group also considers the economic environment of the customers,
both from an industry and geographic perspective, in evaluating the need for allowances. Based on its analysis, the
Group has not made a change to the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables.

3.9 Foreign currency
a) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies initially recorded by the Group entities at their respective functional currency using
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised
in profit ar loss except for monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment in a
foreign operation. These are recognised in OCI unti! the net investment is disposed of, at which time, the cumulative
amount is reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recognised in OCI.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation
of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss are recognised in OCI or
profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

b) Foreign operations

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on acquisition, are translated into $’s at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated into $’s at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in the translation reserve.
3.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. When the Group expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
statement of income net of any reimbursement.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.

3.11 Employee Benefits

The Group employees are spread across different locations and the benefits differ according to local legal and
statutory requirements.

The Group has defined contribution plans and leave encashment benefits for certain locations.
a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related services are provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result
of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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b) Share based payments arrangements

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Acuity Knowledge Partners Employee Share
Plan (“EBT share plan™). Under this plan, all eligible employees are entitled to receive certain units. Each unit will
entitle the holder to the proceeds of the realisation of management equity shares in such a way that each unit of EBT
shares tracks the value of one management equity share. As the Group has an obligation to settle these units at the
time of exit (such as a sale of the business), these have been considered as a cash settled share-based payment plan.

During the vear the Group introduced new share-based compensation benefits to employees via the Acuity
Knowledge Partners Employee Phantom Share Plan (“PSU™). Under this plan, all eligible employees are entitled to
receive certain units. Each such unit will entitle the holder to cash payment equal to 25% of the exit proceeds payable
with respect to one Sweet Equity Share. As the Group has an obligation to settle these units at the time of exit, these
have been considered as a cash settled share-based payment plan.

The expense of the cash settled share-based payment plan is recognised as employee benefits expense over the
relevant service period. The liabilities are remeasured to fair value at each reporting date. The amount of expense
recognised considers the best available estimate of the number of units expected to vest under the service and
performance conditions underlying each unit granted under the plan.

c) Defined contribution plan

Obligatiens for contributions to the defined contribution plan are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available

d) Defined benefif plan

The liability for the defined benefit plan is recognised in the statement of financial position at the present value of
defined benefit obligation at the reporting date. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the statement of
financial position date are discounted to present value. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by independent
actuaries annually using the Projected Unit Credit (‘PUC’) method as recommended by [AS-19 ‘Employee benefits’.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting estimated future cash outflows.

The Group recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from the defined benefit plan under other comprehensive
income and expenses related to the defined benefit plan under ‘Employee benefits expense’ in the statement of
income.

The assumptions on which the results of the actuarial valuation were determined are included in Note 24 to the
financial statements.

Employee benefits include benefits provided either to employees or to their dependents or beneficiaries and may be
settled by payments (or the provision of goods or services) made either directly to the employees, to their spouses,
children or other dependents or to others, such as insurance companies. The liability is not externally funded.

g) Other long term employee benefits

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, That benefit is discounted to determine its
present value.

Benefits under the Group’s compensated absences scheme constitute other long-term employee benefits, The
obligation in respect of compensated absences is provided based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to
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an additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining
the present value of abligations under the defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields as at the balance sheet
dates on high quality corporate bond and Government securities where there is no deep market in high quality
corporate bonds, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations. To the extent the Group
does not have an unconditional right to defer the utilization or encashment of the accumulated compensated absences,
the liability determined based on actuarial valuation is a current liability.

Remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

P Termination benefits

Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring. If benefits are not expected to be settled wholly within 12
months of the reporting date, they are discounted.

3.12 Revenue

Revenue is recognised when control of promised goods or services is transferred to the customer, in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Group expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenue arrangements offered by the Group include hosted research and related maintenance, or post contract
customer support (PCS), and professional services. Professional services are invoiced as those services are provided.
Payment terms and conditicns vary by contract type, but primarily include a requirement of payment within 30 to 60
days.

Products and services offered are sold either stand-alone or together in various combinations. In instances where an
arrangement contains multiple performance obligations, the Group accounts for the individual performance
obligations separately if they are considered distinct. Revenue is generally allocated to all performance obligations
based upon the relative standalone selling prices (SSP) at contract inception. Judgment is often required to determine
the SSP for each distinct performance obligation. The Group determines the SSP by using the price charged for a
deliverable when sold separately or uses management’s best estimate of SSP for goods or services not sold separately
based on the maximum number of observable data points, including: internal factors relevant to its pricing practices
such as costs and margin objeclives; standalone sales prices of similar products; percentage of the fee charged for a
primary product or service relative to a related product or service; and customer segment and geography. Additional
consideration is also given to market conditions such as competitor pricing strategies and market trends. Revenue is
recegnised for each performance obligation based upon the conditions for revenue recognition noted above.

Customers usually pay a fixed fee for the products and services based on signed contracts. However, accounting for
variable consideration is applied mainly for: i) estimates for cancellation rights and price concessions, and ii) time
and material (T&M) based services.

3.13 Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

As a result of the acquisition, the Group acquired certain leases which are recognised as a right-of-use (ROU) asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which, the leased asset is available for use by the Group. Contracts may

contain both lease and non-lease components.
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Right-of-use assets are recognised at cost comprising the following:

» the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

» any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received
» any initial direct costs, and

« dilapidation costs.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the underlying assets useful life.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘Property, plant and
equipment’ and lease liabilities in the statement of financial position.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term payments including:

= fixed payments {including in substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

« variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

« amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees

» the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that eption.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If the rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar économic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

« where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party financing was received

* uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third-party financing, and

= makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost, The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over
the lease period to produce a constant periedic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

As the Group was established on 8§ November 2019, for all existing lease agreements, lease liabilities were measured
at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate as of
8 November 2019. For lease agreements entered post initial adoption, lease liabilities are measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate as on the date of
recognition of lease arrangement. Right of use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted
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by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet
immediately before the date of transition to EU-IFRS.

Group as a lessor

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the sub-lease separately. [t assesses the lease classification
of the sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset. The sub-lease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease.

3.14 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date in principal market or, in its absence, the most advantageous
market to which the Group has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

Certain group accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-
financial assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

» Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

= Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

« Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level inpult that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction price —
i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines that the fair value on initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inputs are
judged to be insignificant in relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair
value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price.
Subsequently, that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but
no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by observable market data, or the transaction is closed out.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors are required to make
judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to
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make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following judgements are made in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have the most significant
effect on these consolidated financial staternents:

a) Estimation of fuir value and relevani service period for recognition of share-based paymenis expenses

The expense of the cash settled share-based payment plan is recognised as employee benefits expense over the
relevant service period based on the fair value of the stock units. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
has recognised the expense for share-based payments based on the estimated fair value as a result of the change of
control of the Group expected to complete in the second quarter of 2023.

b) Estimation of recoverable amount for Goodwill impairment assessment

The Group is required to test, on an annual basis, whether goodwill has suffered any impairment. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the year ended 31 December
2022, the Group has determined the recoverable amount based on estimated fair value as a result of the change of
control of the Group expected to complete in the second quarter of 2023.

¢) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and other intangibles

The Group’s property, plant and equipment and other intangibles are reviewed for indications of impairment (an
impairment “trigger”). Judgment is applied in determining whether an impairment trigger has occurred, based on both
internal and external sources. External sources may include market value declines, negative changes in technology,
markets, economy, or laws. Internal sources may include physical damage or worse economic performance than
expected.

d) Defined benefit plans

The cost and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases.

Due to the complexities invelved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The parameter most
subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest
rates of Government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation
and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation.
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The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and pension increases
are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. Refer note 24 for further information.

€) Determination of fuir value and useful life of assets from business combinations

The Group has used various techniques and assumptions when determining the fair values of certain assets and
liabilities acquired. The useful life of intangibles related to customer relationship is determined based on the client
attrition of the revenue trends for the historical period and life of customer related intangibles reported by comparable
companies for acquisition in similar industries. The useful life of intangibles related to non-compete agreements is
determined based on the life of the contract.
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Revenue
(In $ 000's)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Revenue from contracts with customers 215,338 160,785
Total revenue 215,338 160,785
Disaggregation of revenue
The following table analyses the Group's revenues based on the country where the revenue is earned:
UK 179,771 134,148
Mauritius 13,423 12,512
USA 18,243 10,943
India 3,724 3,039
China 177 143
215,338 160,785

Contract balances

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from contracts

with customers.

As at
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)
As at
31 December 2021

Contract assets, included in ‘trade and other receivables'

(note 17)

Trade receivables 26,097 18,952

Unbilled receivables 7,275 3,820

Total 33,372 22,772

Contract liabilities, included in ‘trade and other payables’

{note 25)

Deferred revenua 1,597 669
1,597 669
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Staff costs

For the year ended
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)
For the year ended
31 December 2021

Wages and salaries

Contributions to defined contribution plans

Expenses related to long-service leave

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans
Social security contributions

Sales commission

Share based payment expenses (refer note 32)

Other employee benefits

The average number of persons employed by the Group
(including directors) during the year.

Highest paid director:

Salaries, fees, bonuses and benefits in kind

Total

For information on total directors’ emoluments refer note 30.

Depreciation and amortisation

Amortisation of right of use assets
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

99,177 81416

2,356 2,414

1,675 1,460

2,272 2,093

5,205 4,128

7,924 5,351

50,196 3,971

2,361 1,466

171,366 102,299

4,902 3,779

(In 5 000's)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
1,005 953

1,005 953

(In $ 000's)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
2,825 3,048

2,250 1,920

11,234 10,552

16,309 15,520
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Other operating expenses

For the year ended
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)

For the year ended
31 December 2021

Charitable contributions

Legal and Professional fees
Marketing

Subseriptinns

Travel and entertainment expenses
Rent and occupancy

Non-capital equipment expenses

Impairment loss/(reversal) on financial
instruments
Net foreign exchange loss

Miscellaneous expenses

Auditors’ remuneration
During the year the fees payable to the Group’s auditor was:

266 247
27,907 5,011
914 651
2,582 2,000
2,795 547
3,970 3,155
4,586 2,991
25 (10)
1,042 -
3,016 1,867
47,103 16,457
(In $ 000's)

For the year ended
31 December 2022

For the year ended
31 December 2021

Fees payable for the audit of the Group’s annual accounts
Fees payable for the audit of the subsidiaries

Fees payable for other services to the Group

-Taxation compliance services

-Other services

Other income

241 195
411 324
7 7
25 46
684 372
(In S 000's)

For the year ended
31 December 2022

For the year ended
31 December 2021

Net foreign exchange gain
(Gain on interest rate swap
Miscellaneous income

- 1,618
3,147 45

285 195
3,432 1,858
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Operating profit (loss)

Revenue
Staff costs*
Amortisation of right of use assets

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Impairment (loss)/reversal on financial
instruments
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain

Other operating expenses*
Gain on interest rate swap
Miscellaneous income

For the year ended
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)

For the year ended
31 December 2021

215,338 160,785
(171,366) (102,299)
(2,825) (3,048)
(2,250) (1,920)
(11,234) (10,552)
(25) 10
(1,042) 1,618
(46,036) (16,467)
3,147 45
285 195
(16,008) 28,367

* [ncludes share-based payment expenses (staff costs) of $50,196 thousands and legal and professional charges
{other operating expenses) of $18,882 thousands recorded in relation to sale of the Group which is expected to

complete in second quarter of 2023.

Net finance costs

Finance income:

Interest income on other financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Unwinding of interest on interest-free loans
Unwinding of interest on security deposits

Finance income

Finance cost:

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Unwinding of discount on liabilities

Interest on term loan

Premium amortised on interest rate cap
Dividends on redeemable preference shares
Finance costs

Net finance costs recognised in profit or loss

For the year ended
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)

For the year ended
31 December 2021

944 765
91 -
124 131
1,159 896
518 607
76 -
16,024 7,811
1,250 -
10,434 17,748
31,302 26,166
30,143 25,270
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Tax expense

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

For the year ended
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)
For the year ended
31 December 2021

Current tax expense

UK cwrrent tax expense

Foreign tax expense

Changes in estimates related to prior years

Total current tax expense

Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary
differences

Effect of tax rate change on opening
balance

Adjustment in respect of prior period

Movement in deferred tax expense

Total tax expense

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

5,002 2,762
6,935 5,729
(5,537) (1,087)
6,400 7,404
(4,898) 2,504
- (3)

115 (1,904)
(4,783) 595
1,617 7,999
(In $ 000's)

For the year ended
31 December 2022

For the year ended
31 December 2021

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Tax impact on remeasurements of defined benefit
liability

(49) (92)
(49) (92)
(In $ 060's)

For the year ended
31 December 2022

For the year ended
31 December 2021

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
Tax impact of gain on forex derivatives

37

130

37

130
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Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Profit before tax
Tax rate

‘I'ax expense at the tax rate (UK)

Effect of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Dividend on Preference share not deductible for tax
purpose

Stock option expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Income not taxable for tax purposes

Subsidiary tax rate differences

Deferred tax expense on undistributed profits of
subsidiaries

Recognition/reversal) of deferred tax expense on
intangibles recognised at acquisition

Changes in estimates related to prior years (current
tax)

Adjustment in respect of prior period (deferred tax)
Others

Tax expense

Deferred tax assets

For year ended
31 December 2022

For year ended
31 December 2021

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

(46,151 3,016
19.00% 19.00%
(8,769) 573

4,286 6,380
1,982 -
9.571
(953) (848)
1,060 973
{431) 1,375
- 2,040
(5,537 (1,087)
115 (1,904)
293 497
1,617 7,999
(In $ 000's)
As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
7,624 5,653
(35,473) (31,178)
(27,849) (25,525)
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Deferred tax assets

Particulars

Provision for employee
benefits

Property, plant and
equipment

Provision for expenses
Losses and other
deductions

Deferred tax liabilities

Particulars

Intangible assets

Gain on forex derivatives
Interest rate cap
Provision for expenses
Provision for Cians
acquisition

Undistributed profits of
subsidiaries

(In 5 000's)
As at Charge/ Charge/ Acquired Exchange As at
1 January  (credit) to (credit) to through difference 31
2022 Statement other business December
of income comprehensive combination 2022
income

2,888 505 - - (342) 3,051
1,079 (722) - 3 (68) 292
(432) 681 49 111 (N 402
2,118 1,761 - - - 3,879
5,653 2,225 49 114 (417) 7,624

{In $ 000’s)
As at Charge/ Charge/ Acquired Exchange As at
1 January (credit) to (credit) to other through difference 31
2022 Statement comprehensive business December
of income income combination 2022
(29,670) 2,129 - (6,.816) - (34,357)
(130) - 748 - - 618
- - (785) - - (785)
®) - - - 3 -
- (2) - 3) - (5)
(1,375) 431 - - - (944)
(31,178) 2,558 37 (6,819) 3 (35,473)

Factors affecting the tax charge in future years

The standard rate of corporation tax applied to reported profit is 19% (31 December 2021 — 19%). Taxation for other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

In the 3™ March 2021 UK Budget, it was announced that the UK rate of corporation tax would further increase from
19% to 25% effective from 1* April 2023 which was affirmed in the UK Budget announced on 15 March 2023. The
rate was substantively enacied on 24 May 2021 and as such the deferred tax balances have been calculated using the
rate expected to apply at the time of the reversal of the balance. Accordingly, deferred tax for 31 December 2022 was

calculated at 25%.

The Group’s future tax charge and effective tax rate could be affected by several factors, including changes in tax
laws and their interpretation, the implementation of the OECD Pillars | and 2, EU and US tax changes, as well as the
impact of change in the Group’s business model.
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Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of carrying amount (In $ 600%s)

Leasehold Fixture Computer Office Total

improvements and equipment equipment
fittings

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2022 1,847 712 9,761 2,618 14,938
Additions 140 7 2,116 87 2,350
Acqugred.through business _ 5 606 54 665
combination
Disposals (84) (1) 427) (5) (517
Elaf;izct of movement in exchange (157) (114) (1.269) (266) (1.806)
Balance as at 31 December 1,746 609 10,787 2,488 15,630
2022
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 2022 1,441 573 6,718 1,920 10,652
Acqul'red.through business ) 4 446 13 493
combination
Depreciation charge for the year 255 41 1,666 288 2,250
Disposal (84) (H (427) &) (517)
iﬁ;ﬁ of movement in exchange (176) 37) (883) (210) (1.356)
Balance as at 31 December 1,436 530 7,520 2,036 11,522
2022
Carrying amounts
As at 31 December 2022 310 79 3,267 452 4,108
As at 1 January 2022 406 139 3,043 698 4,286
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of carrying amount

(In § 000°s)

Leasehold Fixture and Computer Office Total
improvements fittings equipment  equipment
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 202 1,817 694 7,812 2,609 12,932
Additions 75 48 2,144 77 2,344
Disposals (13) - 21) - (34)
Effect of movement in
') ]
exchange rates (32) (30) (174) (68) (304)
Balance as at 31 December 1,847 712 9,761 2,618 14,938
2021
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at | January 2021 1,299 545 5,521 1,639 9,004
Depreciation charge for the year 179 55 1,355 331 1,920
Disposal (3 - (21 - (34)
Effect of movement in
o] - -~

exchange rates 24 a7 (137) (30) (238)
Balance as at 31 December 1,441 573 6,718 1,920 10,652
2021
Carrying amounts
As at 31 December 2021 406 139 3,043 698 4,286
As at 1 January 2021 518 149 2,291 970 3,928
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Other intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount (In § 000's)

Trade Business Customer Computer Non- Total

Name  Excellence and relationships  Software compete

Automation agreements
Tools

Cost
Balance as at 1 January 2022 1,000 3,885 140,500 1,930 - 147,315
Additions - 2,074 - - - 2,074
Acqul.red.through business ) ) 27.210 621 920 28751
combination
Disposals - - - (8) - (8)
Effect of movement in
exchange rates - - (1,017) (201) 34 (1,252)
532";"“ as at 31 December 1,000 5,959 166,693 2,342 886 176,880
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at | January 2022 1,000 1,410 20,120 1,580 - 24,110
Acqunlred.through business } _ - 550) - 550
combination
Amortisation for the year - 870 10,149 149 66 11,234
Disposal - - - (8) - (8)
Effect of movement in A n
exchange rates } ] ) (203) ) (203)
;332';““ as at 31 December 1,000 2,280 30,269 2,068 66 35,683
Carrying amounts
As at 31 December 2022 - 3,679 136,424 274 820 141,197
As at | January 2022 - 2,475 120,380 350 - 123,205
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Other intangible assets (continued)

Reconciliation of carrying amount (In 3 000's)
Trade Business Customer Computer Total
Name Excellence and relationships  Software
Automation Tools
Cost
Balance as at | January 2021 1,600 3,200 140,500 1 676 146,326
Additions - 685 - 340 1,025
Effect of movement in 3
exchange rates ] ) i (36) (36)
ngzlsImce as at 31 December 1,000 3,885 140,500 1,930 147,315
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at | January 2021 574 734 10.746 1,538 13,592
Amortisation for the year 426 676 9.374 76 10,552
Effect of movement in 3 3
exchange rates ) ) ] G4) G4
palance as at 31 December 1,000 1,410 20,120 1,580 24,110
Carrying amounts
As at 31 December 2021 - 2,475 120,380 350 123,205
As at 1 Januvary 2021 426 2,466 129,754 88 132,734
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Goodwill
(In § 000's)
As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Cost

Balance at the beginning of the year 108,310 108,310
Acquisitions through business combination 36,537 -
Effect of movement in exchange rates (1,36%) -
Balance at the end of the year 143,478 108,310

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to
the CGU that {s expected to benefit from that business combination. [n 2022, goodwill impairment testing was
carried out and the Group concluded that no impairment existed on the balance sheet date as the estimated fair
value was in excess of the carrying value.

Acquisition of Cians business

On 12 September 2022, a subsidiary, MT Bidco Consulting Private Limited acquired 100% of the issued share
capital of Cians for a total consideration of $61,184 thousands.

The acquisition has been accounted for under the acquisition method. The following table sets out the fair values
of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired by the Group:

Fair value
{In $ 000’s)

Property, plant and equipment 173
Intangible assets (excluding goodwill) 28,201
Right-of-use assets 897
Trade receivables 1,557
Cash and cash equivalents 4,062
Investments 60
Other financial assets 65
Deferred tax assets 120
Other current assets 659
Total assets 36,694
Retirement benefit obligations 585
Deferred tax liabilities 7,083
Lease liabilities 876
Trade payables 255
Other financial liabilities 1,829
Other current liabilities 33

Contract liabilities 1,087
Total liabilities 12,047
Net assets 24,647
Goodwill 36,537
Purchase consideration 61,184
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In additien to the purchase consideration of $61,184 thousand, the Group has incurred costs of $3,485 thousand on
acquisition which were recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is composed of synergies, the assembled workforce, and {(future) assets and liabilities that do not meet
recognition criteria at the acquisition date. Cians contributed $5,591 thousands of revenue and $1,340 thousands of
operating profits to the Group for the period from 12 September 2022 to 31 December 2022. The acquisition of
Cians is expected to allow the Group to offer enhanced support in the field of knowledge process outsourcing (KPO)
and help streamline the aperations of financial firms globally,

Derivative financial instruments

(In $ 600's)
As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Derivative financial assets
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange forward contracts B 1,309
Interest rate cap 3,179 -
Total derivative financial assets 3,179 1,309
Non-current 775 -
Current 2,404 1,309
3,179 1,309
Derivative financial liabilities
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments:
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2,843 -
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Interest rate swaps - 441
Total derivative financial liabilities 2,843 441
Non-current B -
Current 2,843 441
2,843 441
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Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables
Less: Provision for expected credit loss

Accrued income

Advances and prepayments

Other receivables

Rent and other deposits

Unbilled receivables

Receivables from government authorities
Miscellaneous receivables

Non-current
Current

Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank
Bank deposits with original maturity of less than 90 days

Other bank balances
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than 90 days

(In $ 000's)

As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
26,097 18,952
(76) 81
26,021 18,871
5 106
8,499 5,869
2,262 2,217
7,275 3,820
4,537 2,380
998 183
49,597 33,446
2,262 2,217
47,335 31,229
49,597 33,446
(In § 000's)

As at As at

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

27,826 29,245
6,425 37,479
34,251 66,724
21 842
34,272 67,566
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Investments

As at
31 December 2022

(in $ 000's)
As at
31 December 2021

Short-term investments
Opening balance
Less: lupairment loss on investments

82
(82)

Closing balance

Long term investments
Opening balance
Acquired through business combination

67

Closing balance

67

During the period ended December 2020, the Group made an investment in 13.5% Loan Notes with Abydos
Intelligent Solutions Limited (“Abydos’) for an amount of GBP 60,000. The loan notes were convertible in April
2021 with an option of a one-timme extension up to December 2021, during which period, the investment could be
converted into equity. During the year ended 31 December 2021, following a review of the Investment,

management concluded that the investment has been impaired.

During the year ended December 2022, the Group acquired preferred stock in Titan Hire Inc as part of business
combination. The investment is measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Shareholder's interest

Equity
Equity share capital

Ordinary A Ordinary B Total
Number of shares (in 000's)
As at 31 December 2020 151 840 991
Issued for cash - - -
As at 31 December 2021 151 840 991
Issued far cash 9 - 9
As at 31 December 2022 160 840 1,000
Share capital (in $ 000's)
Asat 31 December 2020 2 g 10
Issued for cash - - -
As at 31 December 2021 2 8 10
Issued for cash - - -
As at 31 December 2022 2 8 10
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Ordinary shares
The Company has two classes of ordinary shares:
i. 160,000 A Ordinary shares having a face value of $ 0.01 each, which have been issued to Executive Management

and the Acuity Knowledge Partners Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT™). These shares do not carry voting rights.
During the year, the Company has issued 9,000 A Ordinary shares to the EBT.

ii. 840,000 B Ordinary shares having a face value of $ 0.01 each, which have been issued to the Funds managed
by Equistone, Executive Management and Acuity Knowledge Partners 2021 Employee Benefit Trust (“EBT
2021™). Each B Ordinary share entitles the shareholder to one vote.

Foreign exchange transiation reserve

These comprise foreign currency translation differences arising from the translation of financial statements of the
Group’s foreign entities into USD.

Cash flow hedge reserves of IRC and NDFs

These represent the cumulative amount of gains or losses on hedging instrument which are considered effective
in cash flow hedges.

Own share

Own shares represent the shares of Trident Holdeo Limited that are held by EBT and EBT 2021. Own shares
recorded at cost and deducted from equity.,

Liability
Preference shares capital
Redeemable
preference shares

Number of shares (in 000's)

As at 31 December 2020 159,000
Shares acquired by EBT 2021 {49)
As at 31 December 2021 158,951
Redemption of shares (151,391)
As at 31 December 2022 7,560

Share capital (in $ 000's)

Asat 31 December 2020 159,000
Shares acquired by EBT 2021 (49)
As at 31 December 2021 158,951
Redemption of shares (151,391)
As at 31 December 2022 7,560

Preference shares

159,000,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares having a face value of $ 0.01 each have been issued by the
Group. The preference shares carry a fixed cumulative preferential dividend at 10% p.a. payable on an exit event
as defined in the Articles of Association of the Group. The preference dividend accrues on each preference share
on a daily basis and is compounded annually on 31 December each year. During the year, the Group redeemed
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preference shares capital of $151,391 thousand along with $46,453 thousands preference dividend (31 December
2021 - $Nil) to its preference shareholders.

Capital Management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued capital, preference shares, share premium and all
other equity reserves atiributable to the equity holders of the parent. The Group’s primary objective when
managing capital is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to maximise
shareholders’ value and benefits for other stakehaolders. Capital is calculated as "Total equity' as shown in the
statcment of financtal position.

To maintain its capital, the Group will consider the amount of dividends paid to shareholders together with levels
of cash, cash equivalents and debt in the Group.

22 Loans and borrowings (In 5 000's)
As at As at
31 December 31 December 2021

2022

Secured borrowing at amortised cost

Senior facility term loan 315,000 105,875
Less: Unamortised loan processing fee (7,975) (2,315)
Net Balance 307,025 103,560
Current liabilities - 2,750
Non-current liabilities 307,025 100,810
307,025 103,560

Terms and repayment schedule

(In $ 600's)

Particulars Currency Nominal Year of Face value Carrying Amount
interest rate maturity

penior faciliy term $ SOFR +5.5% 2029 315,000 307,025

During the year ended December 2022, Trident Bidco entered into a new financing arrangement with financial
institutions amounting to $313,000 thousand. The net proceeds of the arrangement are utilised for repayment of
the senior facility term loan borrowed in 2019 and for redemption of preference shares.

Asat 31 December 2022, the Group has outstanding borrowing of $3 15,000 thousand which carry daily interest
rate of SOFR plus Margin - having a cap of 3% payable at the end of every three months.

Loan covenant compliance
As at 31 December 2022, the Group was in compliance with all the covenants specified in the loan agreement,
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Leases
Group as a lessor

The Group has entered into sublease agreements on properties acquired on operating leases. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year is Nil (31 December 2021 - $13 thousand). These sublease agreements
ended in March 2021, There are no non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2022,

Group as a lessee

The Group lias laken office premises on leases. The leases typically run for a period of 3-9 years, with an option
to tenew the lease after that date. Lease payments are renegotiated at the time of renewal to reflect market rentals.

Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is presented below.

Right of use asset

Balance at beginning of the year
Acquisitions through business combination

Additions

Modification of leases
Depreciation/Amortisation

Effect of movement in exchange rates
Balance at the end of the year

Lease Liabilities

Current
Non-current

Maturity Analysis

As at
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)
As at
31 December 2021

0-1 year

1-2 Year

2-3 Year

3-4 year

4-5 year

More than 5 years
Total

6,651 6,147
897 -
2,260 3,985

- (308)
(2,825) (3,048)
(1,058) (125)
5,925 6,651
(In 5 000's)

As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
2,281 3,124
3,909 3,998
6,190 7,122
(In $ 000's)

As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
2,281 3,124
1,659 2,541
1,030 840
702 537
500 20

18 -
6,190 7,122
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Amounts recognised in profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Expenses relating to short-term leases
Amortisation of right of use assets

Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows

Total cash outflow for leases

Extension options

For the year ended
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)

For the year ended
31 December 2021

518
944
2,825

3,816

607
473
3,048

Extension and termination options are included in a number of office premises leases across the Group. These
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group’s operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held is exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective

lessor.

Significant judgements in determining the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive fo exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certaint to be extended (or
not terminated). Most extension options in offices leases have been included in the lease liability, because the
Group could not replace the assets without significant cost or business disruption.

Incremental borrowing rate

The fotlowing incremental borrowing rates are used for lease liabilities.

Geography Rate

India 9.50%
Sri Lanka 15.00%
Costa Rica 8.75%
China - 4.25%
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Employee benefits

As at
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)
As at
31 December 2021

Net defined benefit fiability 3,810 8,362
Liability for long-service leave 4,637 4,129
Accrued bonus and other staff payables 13,737 11,828
Share based payment liabilities 54,576 4,384
Total employee benefits liabilities 81,760 28,703
Non-current 10,357 14,147
Current 71,403 14,556
Total employee benefits liabilities 81,760 28,703

A. Movement in net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net

defined benefit (asset)/ liability and its components

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability:

(In $ 000's)
As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Batance at beginning of the year 8,362 7,078
Acquisitions through business combination 304 -
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 1,130 1,096
Interest cost 537 463
1,667 1,559
Included in OCI
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:
- demographic assumptions 56 (132)
- financial assumptions {333) 214
- expetience adjustment 467 226
190 288
Other
Benefits paid (595) (398)
Effect of movement in exchange rates (1,118) (165)
(1,713) (563)
Balance as at end of the year 8,810 8,362
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B. Defined benefit obligation

i. Actuarial assumptions

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted

averages).

Discount rate (%)
Future salary growth (%)

Retirement Age (Years)
Mortality rates inclusive of
provision for disability

Ages
Upto 30 Years
From 31 to 44 years
Above 44 years

Leave
Leave consume rate
Leave lapse rate on exit

Sri Lanka India
11.62 7.06

9.5 10.50

55 60

A 1967/70 100% of IALM
Mortality Table (2012-14)
Withdrawal Withdrawal
Rate (%) Rate (%)
24.00 25.00
24.00 25.00
24.00 25.00
30.00 2.50

Nil Nil
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ii. Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other

assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Discount rate (0.50%
movement)

Future salary growth
(0.50% movement)

Discount rate (0.50%
movement)

Future salary growth
(0.50% movement)

Discount rate (0.50%
movement)

Future salary growth
(0.50% movement)

Discount rate (0.50%
movement)
Future salary growth

(0.50% movement)

Discount rate (0.50%
maovement)

Future salary growth
(0.50% movement)

Entity

Acuity Knowledge
Partners Lanka
(Private) Limited

Acuity Knowledge
Partners Lanka
(Private) Limited

Acuity Knowledge
Services (India) Private
Limited

Acuity Knowledge
Services (India) Private
Limited

Acuity KP Solutions
(India) Private Limited

Acuity KP Solutions
(India) Private Limited

Acuity Knowledge
Centre (India) Private
Limited

Acuity Knowledge
Centre (India) Private
Limited

Cians Analytics Pvt.
Lid.,

Cians Analytics Pvt.
Ltd.,

Classification

Pension

Pension

Pension

Pension

Pension

Pension

Pension

Pension

Pension

Pension

(In $ 000's)
As at 31 As at 31

December 2022 December 2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(5) 5 11 (1)

5 {5) (1) 11
{73) 76 70 {(73)
73 (71) (70) 68
(17 17 17 (18)
17 (16) (rn 17
57 59 52 (54)
57 (35 (52) 51
(6) 6 - -
5 &) - -
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Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Social security and other taxes payable

Interest payable
Accrued expenses
VAT payable
Deferred revenue
Other payables

Non-current
Current

Provisions*

Balance as at beginning of the year
Provisions used during the year
Exchange differences

Non-current
Current

*Provisions for property dilapidations and onerous leases

(In § 000's)

As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
476 8§20
1,658 1,351
1,789 -
23,121 5,066
1,687 1,430
1,597 669
1,857 2,352
32,185 11,688
32,185 11,688
32,185 11,688
{In $ 000's)

As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
85 130

- (43)

(14) @)

71 85

71 85

71 85
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Categories of financial instruments

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period. The carrying amounts

approximate fair values:

Carrying value at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables — net

Other receivables

Unbilled revenue

Rent and other deposits

Cash at bank and in hand

Bank deposits
Total

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade payables

Other payables
Employee liabilities
Borrowings

Lease liabilities
Total

Financial assets at fair value
Current derivative financial instruments

Non-current derivative financial instruments

Long term investment

Financial liabilities at fair value

Non-current derivative financial instruments:

Interest rate swaps
Interest rate swaps used for hedging

As at
31 December 2022

(In $ 000's)

As at
31 December 2021

26,021 18,871
998 183
7,275 3,820
2,262 2,217
27,826 29,245
6,446 38,321
70,828 92,657
{In 5 000's)

As at As at

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

476 820
1,857 2,352
81,760 28,703
307,025 103,560
6,190 7,122
397,308 142,557
(In § 000°s)

As at As at

31 December 2022

31 December 2021

2,404
775
67

As at
31 December 2022

1,309

As at
31 December 2021

2,843

441
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The fair value of the security deposits (included in rental and other deposits) have been calculated based on the
cash flows discounted using a current lending rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value
hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty risk.

Considering the short-term nature of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, employee liabilities, other trade
payables and accrued expenses, their fair values as on 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 are considered
the same as their carrying amounts on that date.

There were no transfers between any levels during the year.

The Group has entered into an Interest Rate Swap (“IRS”) agreement with HSBC Bank PL.C as the floating rate
payer on 31 July 2020. The IRS agreement had maturity date of 31 December 2023 with a notional amount
{amortising) of $110,000 thousand and fixed rate of 1.5088%. During the year, the IRS agreement was terminated
as the related loan was repaid.

During the year the Group entered into an Interest Rate Cap agreement (IRC) with HSBC Bank PL.C as the floating
rate payer. The IRC has a maturity date of 8 June 2024 with a notional amount of $267,225 thousand and strike
rate of 3%

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments are subject to certain significant credit, liquidity and foreign currency risks.
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer, counterparty or an underlying third party will be unable to meet commitments
that it has entered into with the Group, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its
operating activities (primarily trade receivables and unbilled revenue).

The credit risk is managed on a group basis based on the Group’s credit risk management policies and procedures.
For trade receivables and unbilled revenue, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating the expected
credit loss (ECL). The Group recognises provisions for ECL based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. Given the short period exposed
to credit risk, the impact of these forward-looking factors is not significant within the reporting period.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue are written off (i.e., derecognised) when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery. The following events are common indicators of no reasonable expectation of recovery:

{2) Failure to make payments within 180 days from the invoice date;
{b) Customers in financial difficulty or bankruptcy
{(¢) Customers who have refused to pay

Foreign currency risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk relates primarily to operating
activities (when revenue or expenses denominated in foreign currency) and the Group’s net investment in foreign
subsidiaries.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by using non-deliverable forward contracts.
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The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities in foreign currency, and these are monitored for fluctuations

based on materiality.

As at 31 December 2022

In Foreign Exchange Sensitivity for exchange rate
Particulars cu(;-(;;:;cy In § 000's rate 10% increase 10% decrease
Cash and cash equivalents
Euro (EUR) 110 118 1.07 12 (12)
British Pound Sterling (GBP) 1,923 2,326 1.21 233 (233
Hong Kong Dollar (HKD) 67 9 0.13 1 (1)
Singapore Dollar (SGD) 1 1 0.75 - -
Trade and other receivables
Japanese Yuan (JNY) 6,495 65 0.01 7 (7)
British Pound Sterling (GBP) 1,492 1,805 1.21 181 (181)
Euro (EUR) 414 443 1.07 44 (44)
Hong Kong Dollar (HKD) 272 35 0.13 4 (4)
Trade and other payables
Chinese Yuan {CNY) 5,154 722 0.14 72 (72)
Indian Rupees {INR) 6,559 66 0.01 7 (N
Singapore Dollar (SGD) 8 6 0.75 1 (N
British Pound Sterling (GBP) 6,330 7,659 1.21 766 (766)
Hong Kong Dollar (HKD) 174 23 0.13 2 (2)
Canadian Dollar (CAD) 2 2 0.74 - -
As at 31 December 2021

In Foreign Sensitivity for exchange rate
Particulars currency In § 000's Exchange . o

000's rate 10% increase 10% decrease

Cash and cash equivalents
Euro (EUR) 252 285 1.13 29 29
British Pound Sterling {GBP) 1,196 1,612 1.35 161 {le1)
Hong Kong Dollar (HKD) 1 - 0.13 - -
Singapore Dollar {SGD) 1 1 0.74 - -
Trade and other receivables
Japanese Yuan (JNY) 6,495 60 0.01 6 (6)
British Pound Sterling (GBP) 1,941 2614 1.35 261 (201)
Euro (EUR) 482 571 1.18 57 (57)
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Particulars l:u‘:-:;‘ilcgy“ In $ 000's Exchange Seﬂ'SiﬁVit}’ for exchange rate
H00’s rate 10% increase  10% decrease

Trade and other payables

Euro (EUR) 10 11 1.13 1 (1)

Indian Rupees (INR) 655,544 8,921 0.01 8§92 {892)

Singapore Dollar (SGD) 8 6 0.75 1 (1)

British Pound Sterling (GBP) 1,463 1,956 1.34 196 (196)

Liquidity risk

The Group's liquidity risk is the risk that it will encounter difficulties raising liquid funds to meet commitments
as they fall due. There is a treasury function at Group level which regularly monitors the liquidity position and
maintains appropriate funds to meet group-wide liquidity requirements. The Group continuously monitors the
liabilities maturing in the next 12 months period. As at 31 December 2022, approximately 19% (31 December
2021 - 17%) of the Group’s total liabilities will mature within one year. The Group assessed the concentration
risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety
of funding and debt maturing within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments.

As at 31 December 2022

Lease liabilities
Other trade payables
Borrowings
Employee liabilities

As at 31 December 2021

Lease liabilities
Other trade payables
Borrowings
Empioyee liabilities

(In $ 000's)
0 to 1 year 1to3 3 to 5 years More than § Fotal
years years
2,281 2,689 1,202 18 6,190
476 - - - 476
- - - 307,025 307,025
71,279 4,418 2,559 3,504 81,760
74,036 7,107 3,761 310,547 395,451
(In % 000's)
0 to 1 year 1to3 Jto5 More than § Total
years years years
3,124 3,381 617 - 7,122
820 - - - 820
2,150 4.300 4,385 92,725 103,560
14,556 8,526 2,373 3,248 28,703
20,650 16,207 7,375 95,973 140,205
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TRIDENT HOIL.DCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Related parties

Ultimate Controlling Party

Equistone is regarded as the ultimate controlling party by virtue of its control of the funds which hold
the equity shares of the Company.

Key management personnel compensation comprises the following:
(In $ 000's)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Short-term employee benefits 1130 1.084
(Directors’ remuneration) ’ ’

1,130 1,084

Commitments and contingencies (In $ 000's)

As at As at

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Contingent liabilities 4,105 3.598

With respect to subsidiary companies in India, the Group is subject to tax legal proceedings and claims,
which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The directors reasonably expect that these legal
actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will not have a material adverse effect on the Group
operations or financial condition,

Share based payments

The Group grants to its employees’ rights to equity instruments of Trident Holdco Limited through the
Acuity Knowledge Partners Employee Benefit Trust and Acuity Knowledge Partners Employee Phantom
Share Plan which are treated as cash settled share-based payments. The equity instruments have been
issued at the grant date fair value and will vest at an exit event {e.g., sale of the Company). A liability is
recognised for the employee services, measured initially at the fair value of the liability. At each reporting
date until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair value of the liability is remeasured,
with any changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss for the year. Consequently, for the year ended
31 December 2022, an expense of $50,196 thousand (31 December 2021 - $3,971 thousand) has been
recognised in the Group consolidated accounts. The fair value of the liability as at 31 December 2022
was $54,576 thousand (31 December 2021 - $4,385 thousand). For the year ended 31 December 2022,
the fair value of a stock unit is measured using the expected per share value in relation to the prospective
change of control expected in the second quarter of 2023.
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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Subsequent events

On 27 January 2023, the Group’s ullimate controlling party, Equistone Partners Europe Limited
(Equistone), announced that it has agreed to sell its investment in the Group with other sharchelders to
Permira Advisors LLP (Permira). Permira is a global investment firm based in London, United Kingdom.
The sale of the Group is subject to regulatory approvals and is expected to close in the second quarter of
2023. Equistone will reinvest in the Group as a minority sharcholder.
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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Parent company financial statements

Company number: 12070709

Trident Holdeo Limited
Company financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Parent company financial statements

Company statement of income and other comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2022

(In $ 000°s)

For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31
Note December 2022 December 2021
Qperating expenses (513) {456)
Other expenses (6) {4)
Operating Loss (319 (460)
Finance income 4 8,468 16,000
Finance cost 5 (10,425) (17,749
Net finance cost (1,957) (1,749)
Loss before tax (2,476) {2,209)
Tax (expense) / credit - -
Loss for the year (2,476) (2,209)
Other comprehensive income for the
year - -
Total comprehensive expense for the
year (2,476) (2,209

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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TRIDENT MMOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDMARIFS

Parent company financial statements

Company statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2022

(In $ 000°s)

As at As at
Note 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Non-current assets
Investments 6 52,771 1
Trade and other receivables 7 5,324 194,476
58,095 194,477
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 7 41 99
Cash and cash equivalents 179 624
220 723
Total Assets 58,315 195,200
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 8 1,308 1,275
1,308 1,275
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 8 53,210 195
53,210 195
Total liabilities excluding preference share 54,518 1,470
Shareholder’s interest
Liabilities
Preference share capital 7.563 159,000
Accrued dividends 207 36,236
7,770 195,236
Equity
Share capital 10 10
Retained earnings (4,973) (2,497)
Share premium and other reserves 990 981
Total equity (3,973) {1,506)
Total sharcholder’s interest 3,797 193,730
Total liabilities 62,288 196,706
Total equity and liabilities 58,315 195,200
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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Parent company financial statements

The notes form an integral part of the Company’s financial statements.

These financial statements of Company number 12070709 were approved by the board of directors on 31 March
2023 and were signed on its behalf by:

LT
AT TS

T

Robert David King
Director

Fd

Date 31 March 2023
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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Parent company financial statements

Company statement of changes in equity

(In $ 000°s)

. Ordinary share Share Retained Total equity
Particulars capital premium earnings
Balance as at 31 December 2020 10 981 (288) 703
Loss for the year - - (2,209) (2,209)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 10 981 2:497) (1,506)
Issue of ordinary shares - 9 - 9
Loss for the year - - (2,476) (2,476)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 10 990 (4,973) (3,973)

The notes form an integral part of the Company’s financial statements.



TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Parent company financial statements

Notes to the Company financial statements

General Information

Trident Holdco Limited ("the Company"} is a company incorperated in the United Kingdom and registered in
England and Wales. The principal activity of the Company is to be the holding company for a group of companies
that provide customised proprietaty research,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of Trident Holdco Limited (the “Company”) were prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 and Financial Reporting Standard 101 (*FRS 1017) with certain exemptions of the reduced
disclosure framework.

The Company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 and does not present its own cash flow
statement, related party disclosure and financial instruments disclosure.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of UK adopted International Accounting Standards (UK-1AS) but makes amendments where
necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101
disclosure exemptions has been taken.

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted by the Company are otherwise consistent with those used for the Group and have
been consistently applied throughout the year and are set out in Note 3 significant accounting policies of the
consolidated financial statements. Judgements made by the directors, in the application of these accounting policies
that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment
in the next vear are discussed in Note 4 critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
of the consolidated financial statements.

Investments in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaties are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its investments in subsidiary undertakings to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. The Company first
considers the individual cash-generating units within each subsidiary and impairment testing is performed for each
cash-generating unit. If any indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). If any cash-generating unit has suffered an
impairment loss, that impairment loss is recognised in the Company’s subsidiary’s financial statements. If the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
the profit or loss.

On disposal of investments, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount is recognised as
gain/loss in the statement of income.

Receivables and payables - Group undertakings

Receivables from and payables to group undertakings are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities
respectively as the Company expects to recover or settle the amounts after more than twelve months from the end
of the reporting period.
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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Parent company financial statements

Share based payment arrangements

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to employees of the Group via the Acuity Knowledge Partners
Employee Share Plan (“EBT share plan™). Under this plan, all eligible employees are entitled to receive certain
units. Each such unit will entitle the holder to the proceeds of the realisation of management equity shares in such
a way that each unit of EBT shares tracks the value of onc management equity share. As the Company has an
obligation to settle these units at the time of exit, these have been considered as a cash settled share-based payment
plan. As the employees are not providing services to the Company directly, the corresponding amount is treated as
increase in ‘investment in subsidiaries’. The amount of increase in investment recognised takes into account the
best available estimate of the number of units expected to vest under the service and performance conditions
underlying each unit granted under the plan.

4. Finance income

The Company recognised interest income on outstanding intercompany loans. The finance income for the Company

is as follows:
(In $ 000°s)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Interest income 8,468 16,000
Total finance income 8,468 16,000

5. Finance cost

The Company has recognised finance costs on preference share capital. The finance costs for the Company are as
follows:

(In 5 000’s)

Dividend on preference share capital

Bank Fees
Total finance cost

For the year ended
31 December 2022

For the year ended
31 December 2021

10,423 17,748
2 i
10,425 17,749
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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
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6. Investments

The Company reports investments in the subsidiary undertakings as of 31 December 2022, which principally
affect the profits or net assets of the Company. Investments are stated at cost. There were no provisions made
against investments in subsidiary undertakings.

(In S 000°s)

As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Opening balance of investments | l

Additions due to share-based payment arrangement 52,770 -

Closing balance of investments 52,771 1

Number of shares acquired in Trident Midco 1 Limited 900
Face value of the share $1

Details of undertaking

Details of investments (including principal place of business of unincorporated entities) in which the Company
hoids 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of shares capital as follows:

Undertaking Registered office Country of Proportion of voting rights
incorporation
Trident Midco | Limited | 27 Old Gloucester UK 100% Holding Company for a
Street, London, group of companies that
England, WCIN pravide customised
3AX proprietary research

Full details of all subsidiaries are shown in Note 29 of the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

7. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables of the Company consist of the following:

(In $ 000°s)

As at As at

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Loan receivables - Group undertakings 4,873 159,999
Interest receivables - Group undertakings 134 34,443
Other receivables - Group undertakings 317 34
Other receivables - 55
Receivables from government authorities 40 43
Advance and prepayments 1 1
Total trade and other receivabies 5,365 194,575
Non-current 5,324 194,476
Current 41 99
Total trade and other receivables 5,365 194,575
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TRIDENT HOLDCO LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Parent company financial statements

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables of the Company consist of the following:

Amounts due to group undertakings
Accrued expense

Employee share-based payment liabilities
Total trade and other payables

Non-current
Current

Total trade and other payables

Dividends

(In $ 0007s)

As at As at

31 December 2022 31 December 2021
1,308 1,275

440 195

52,770 -

54,518 1,470

1,308 1273

53,210 195

54,518 1,470

The Company has cumulatively accrued $207 thousand (31 December 2021 - $36,236 thousand) related to its annual
preferential dividend at a rate of at 10% p.a. payable upon redemption.

Related party transaction

Remuneration of directors

Details of the remuneration to Directors and the number of employees employed by the Group is as per Note 6 to
the consolidated financial statements. None of the directors received remuneration in respect of services to the
Company. The Company did not have any employees during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Ultimate controlling party

The disclosure in respect of the parent company and controlling party is contained in note 29 of the Group financial

statements,
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